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Queen Elizabeth Grammar School Penrith

Trustees' Report

lntroduction
The Trustees present their annual report together with the financial statements and auditor's report of the
charitable company for the year 1 September 2020 to 31 August 2021,.Ihe annual report serves the purposes
of both a Trustees' report, and a directors' report under company law.

The trust operates an academy for pupils aged 1.1 to 18 serving a catchment area in and around Penrith in

Cumbria. lt had a pupil capacity of 840 and had a roll of 999 in the school census in October 2021.

Structure, Governance and Management

Naming convention and Articles of Association
The Governing Board filed a request for an update to the Articles of Association on 14 Dec 2020. As of 14

October 2021, the latest update is that they are waiting for a review by the Governance Team in DfE. The
purpose is to bring them up to date with the current model articles and to change our terminology to be in
line with use by GIAS and other government papers. For that purpose, Trustees will from now on be

referred to as trustees in this document, which will be reflected in our Articles as soon as it is approved. On

our website, the term Governors is still used.

Constitution
The academy trust is a company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity. The charitable company's
memorandum and articles of association are the primary governing documents of the academy trust. The
Trustees of Queen Elizabeth Grammar School Penrith are also the directors of the charitable company for the
purposes of company law. The charitable company is known as Queen Elizabeth Grammar School Penrith.

Details of the Trustees who served during the year, and to the date these accounts are approved and are
included in the Reference and Administrative Details on page 3.

Members' tiability
Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the charitable company in
the event of it being wound up while they are a member, or within one year after they cease to be a member,
such amount as may be required, not exceeding €10, for the debts and liabilities contracted before they
ceased to be a member.

Trustees' lndemnities
The academy trust has opted into the Department for Education's risk protection arrangement (RPA), an
alternative to insurance where UK government funds cover losses that arise. This scheme protects trustees
and officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on academy business,
and provides cover up to f 10,000,000. lt is not possible to quantify the trustees and officers' indemnity
element from the overall cost of the RPA scheme.

Method of Recruitment and Appointment or Election of Trustees
All parent and staff Trustees (with the exception of the Headteacher who is an Ex-Officio Trustee) are elected.
As per the Academy's Articles of Association and DfE guidance, there is always a minimum of two parent
Trustees serving the Academy. ln accordance with the current Articles of Association, the number of staff
Trustees does not comprise more than one third of the total number of serving Trustees and currently there
is one staff Trustee. Any positions arising for either a parent / staff Trustee will be advertised for a reasonable
period and those who are eligible as parents / staff are invited to submit an application form. Where there is

more than one candidate, an election is held by a secret ballot paper.
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Trustees' Report (Continued)

Concerning Co-Opting Trustees onto the board, a skills survey taken from the NGA is normally done on an

annual basis to look for specific gaps in the skill-set of Trustees. This is analysed in the finalfull board meeting
in July and any gaps identified forms a basis for a search in the wider community for person(s) obtaining the
desired skills to enhance the performance of the Board of Trustees. Anyone identified will make a written
application / statement to the Board of Trustees as well as having an informal interview with both the Chair

and Vice Chair of Trustees. A vote will be taken at a full board meeting with a majority in favour needed for
the appointment to take place. Due to Covid-19 and no changes to the Board of Trustees in this time, there
was not a need to conduct a survey in July 2021 (last survey conducted in July 2020) but the intention is to
conduct one in the summer term of 2022.

Policies and Procedures Adopted for the lnduction and Training of Trustees

The training and induction provided for new Trustees and members will depend on their existing experience.

Where necessary an induction will provide training on charity, educational, legal and financial matters. All

new Trustees will be given a tour of the Academy and the chance to meet with staff and students. All Trustees

are provided with copies of policies, procedures, minutes, accounts, budgets, plans and other documents
that they will need to undertake their role as Trustees. With new Trustees, the induction tends to be done

informally and is tailored specifically to the individual.

Organisational Structure
Queen Elizabeth Grammar School Penrith Academy Trust replaced the old Queen Elizabeth Grammar School,

which was a foundation school operating on the same site. The Academy took over on 1st May 2011. The

day-to-day running of the Academy is delegated to the senior management team, under the leadership of
the Headteacher who is part of the Academy's Board of Trustees.

The Board ofTrustees consists ofthe Trustees ofthe Academy and the other appointed Trustees. All Trustees

are also directors of the company.

The Board of Trustees has two sub committees. The first is the finance and pay committee. This committee
exists to allocate and monitor financial resources effectively and efficiently in line with the Academies

Accounts Direction 2O2O|2L in order to meet the short, medium and long-term objectives of the Academy.

Moving forward there will be a third committee, Risk and Audit committee. The education and standards

committee deals with educational performance, curriculum, staffing and welfare objectives and monitoring.

ln accordance with the Articles, the Trustees are also responsible for appointing a separate committee to be

known as the 'Board of Trustees' whose member are

. Up to 5 members appointed Trustees;
o The Headteacher;
o A minimum of 2 parent Trustees;
o Staff Trustees employed by the Academy as long as the total (including the Head Teacher) does not

exceed 7/3 of the total number of Trustees;
. Up to three co-opted additional Trustees to be appointed by the Board of Trustees.

All Trustees are appointed for a period of four years. The Board of Trustees has a Chair and vice Chair. The

Chair of the Board of Trustees and the vice Chair are appointed by the Board of Trustees annually. The parent

members and the staff members are elected in accordance with a process determined by the Trustees. The

Board of Trustees also appoints from its members a Chair and vice Chair for each of the sub committees.

Q
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Trustees' Report (Continued)

The Board of Trustees also appoints the Clerk to the Board of Trustees who is responsible for providing
administrative assistance to the Board of Trustees including, but not limited to, preparing the minutes of the
Board of Trustees. The Clerk is not a member of the Board of Trustees and is not a trustee.

The Board of Trustees holds regular meetings, at least one every term.

Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel

When Queen Elizabeth Grammar School became an academy, Trustees agreed to adopt nationalTeachers'
Pay and Conditions as a minimum. The Queen Elizabeth Grammar School pay policy, updated and agreed

annually by the Governing Body, includes additions to the County Model Policy and enhancements

specifically provided by Queen Elizabeth Grammar School in line with its status as an independent academy.

Trustees are responsible for setting the pay of the Head Teacher and the annual review and performance

review then establishes the pay of the Head Teacher on an annual basis. The Trustees will approve pay

progression for other members of the Senior Leadership Team in April and November as applicable. The

annual pay increase agreed by the government will be paid to teaching staff from 1't September of each year.

Trade Union Facility Time

ln agreement with the relevant trade union representatives, Queen Elizabeth Grammar School allows the
representatives to attend training events and other activities required within their role when requested.
There is no specific allocation of time and all parties are satisfied with this arrangement.

Related Parties and other Connected Charities and Organisations

The Academy is not a member of any Multi-Academy Trust.

The Academy works in partnership with the Cumbrian Association of School Leaders (CASL), the Carlisle

Secondary Learning Consortium (CSLC), Cumbria Association Of Secondary Head teachers (CASH) and other
Eden secondary and primary schools through 'Excellence in Eden' projects and the Eden Secondary Schools
group, to enhance the continuing professional development of the school's staff and share good practice in
teaching and learning as well as contributing to the national programme of teacher training. QEGS also works
closely with One Cumbria to provide lnitial Teacher Training (lTT) and Early Career Framework (ECF) support
and guidance to teaching staff as they begin their training and in the first two years in post. QEGS also

contributes to and encourages staff participation in One Cumbria's offer of National Professional

Qualifications (NPQs) at all relevant levels. ln addition, members of the SLT work closely with the Grammar
School Heads' Association and regularly attend meetings in the Yorkshire, Lancashire and Cumbria area
group. The Deputy Head teacher also attends the national Deputies' Meetings.

The Academy benefits from its association with the Friends of QEGS, a group whose objectives are to advance
the education of pupils in the School, in particular by developing effective relationships between the staff,
parents and others associated with the School, and by engaging in activities or providing facilities or
equipment which support the School and advance the education of the pupils.
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Trustees' Report (Continued)

Objectives and Activities

Objects and Aims
The principal aim of the Academy is to advance for the public benefit, education in the United Kingdom, in
particular but without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing by establishing, maintaining, carrying on,
managing and developing schools offering a broad and balanced curriculum.

Objectives, Strategies and Activities
Our overall vision and strategy was updated at the Board of Trustees in July, and the updated version is

reflected below.

ln order to prepare our students to succeed in tomorrow's world the Academy Trust aims to provide a secure
learning environment, a rigorous academic curriculum, high expectations, and best practice in teaching,
learning and technology enhanced by wide-ranging extra-curricular opportunities and outstanding pastoral

care. Our students will demonstrate and encourage respect for everyone within our community and globally,

treating all people equally irrespective of their characteristics and celebrate diversity.

Aims

1. The Academy aims to build upon its tradition of academic excellence. Pupils will be encouraged to strive
for the highest levels of achievement to maximise their potential.

2. The Academy aims to take full advantage of its small numbers to provide a caring environment in which
the individual pupil's personality and abilities are valued and fostered.

3. We will educate and develop tolerance and respect for all, paying particular regard to protected

characteristics

4. The Academy will provide an environment in which creativity, enterprise and initiative are encouraged.

Social, artistic and sporting activities will be promoted to develop pupils' interests and talents.

5. The Academy will do its best to ensure that pupils leave this school to embark upon higher education or
employment confident in their skills and learning and fitted for useful, active citizenship.

The Academv will do its best

1. To raise the standard of educational achievement of all students;

2. To ensure that every child enjoys the same high quality education in terms of resourcing, tuition and care;

3. To foster self-esteem and respect for each person as an individual; by creating a positive and inclusive

atmosphere and encouraging a shared commitment to respect diversity and difference; by challenging

discrimination and promoting good relations between people, irrespective of their characteristics. ln

particular, the school will not permit any direct or indirect discrimination, harassment or victimisation of any

person, adult or child, because of any person's characteristic that is protected.

4. To improve its effectiveness by continual review of the curriculum and organisational structure;

5. To provide value for money for the funds expended;

6. To comply with all appropriate statutory and curriculum requirements;

(a
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Trustees' Report (Continued)

7. To maintain close links with institutions of higher education, business, industry and commerce;

8. To conduct its business with the highest standards of integrity, probity and openness.

Significant Activities
The Academy continues its excellent reputation for academic achievement combined with strong pastoral
care and a myriad of curriculum enrichment and extra-mural activities. Key indicators of academic
achievement are included under the next section. lnevitably the impact of Covid-19 in terms of closure and
challenges in staffing and student attendance have affected the ability for the academy to maintain the
normal levels of many of our activities during the year 2O2O-2O2|. Having said this, the academy has
continued to provide full academic and pastoral provision through a blend of online and face-to-face
engagement. Extracurricular activities have been offered where possible and there has been much success
in this area since the start of the academic year 202!-22. All comments that follow need to be taken in the
context of the Covid-19 environment, as it has changed over the last year.

The Academy's most significant activity is the provision of a seven-year academic programme to 150 (PAN

120) academically selected children each year at 11+, with the exception of Year 1.L only for 2O2O-2L (125),
progressing through GCSEs and A Levels to university entry. The vast majority of students at 18+ then move
on to Russell Group universities including Oxford and Cambridge. Due to the new financial constraints on
university education, a growing number of students are also looking to move into vocational and
a pprenticeship activities.

Complementing the academic curriculum, the Academy normally delivers a diverse range of enrichment
and extra-curricular activities, including work experience, sport, the creative and performing arts, science,
technology, enterprise and travel to Europe and beyond.

The Academy provides a strongly supportive system of pastoral care working with and directing, both
students and parents, to a range of outside health and welfare agencies.

As well as facilitating continuing professional development opportunities for its own teaching and non-
teaching staff, the Academy offers a programme of enrichment activities to parents and local primary
schools. lt also opens its sports and classroom facilities to a considerable number of community groups
throughout the year ranging from primary age cricket to circus skills. The Academy also encourages its
students in raising funds for local, national and international charities.

The Academy reaches out to the wider community by contributing to the training of student teachers, in
partnership with, amongst others, University of Cumbria, and collaborative work with other Cumbrian
secondary schools. The Academy also encourages its students in raising funds for local, national and
international charities.

Equal opportunities policy
The Trustees recognise that equal opportunities should be an integral part of good practice within the
workplace. The Academy will not discriminate directly, indirectly, harass, victimise any person, adult or
student, nor will the school cause, or permit any prohibited conduct and/or discriminating provision,
conduct or practice. ln particular, the school will not permit any direct or indirect discrimination,
harassment or victimisation of any person, adult or child, because of any person's characteristic that is
protected, namely, age, disability, sex, gender reassignment, sexual orientation, marriage and civil
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partnership, race, religion or belief. Further, the school will not treat any person, adult, or child, less

favourably because of a protected characteristic. lt is the policy of the school to treat all persons, adult or
children, fairly and without prejudice or bias. lt is the policy of this school to be aware and vigilant that the
procedures of the school and the conduct of Trustees, staff and students does not conflict with cultural
boundaries but operates fairly and has the appearance of operating fairly.

Disabled persons

Ramps and disabled toilets are installed and door widths are adequate to enable wheelchair access to all
main areas of the Academy. The policy of the Academy is to support recruitment and retention of students
and employees with disabilities. The Academy does this by adapting the physical environment, by making

support resources available and through training and career development.

Public Benefit
The trustees confirm that they have complied with Section 17(5) of the 20L1 Charities Act in having paid

due regard to the Charities Commission guidance on public benefit.

The key public benefit, which the Academy aims to develop, is the provision of a continuing high quality of
education to all students. The Academy offers opportunities for personal success with a wide range of
extra-curricular activities and educational trips as well as a good resource for the local community by

offering facilities for local sports clubs. lt also works with local primary schools.

Strategic Report

Achievements and Performance
ln the face of the COVID -19 pandemic, the Academy continues its excellent reputation for academic
achievement combined with strong pastoral care. The impact of the covid-19 pandemic has affected our
usual extensive range of curriculum enrichment and extra- curricular activities. Details of what has been
provided are below. Key indicators of academic achievement are not available for the year 2O2O-21 as a

result of GCSE and A level results being based on teacher assessment grades (TAGS). The DfE decided that no

public examination results or other forms of outcomes would be published and no judgements would be

made based on this set of outcomes. Staff and students responded admirably to the challenges of lockdown.
Academic lessons continued during lockdown through a blend of online resources and lessons delivered

through Zoom and Teams. The Academy rapidly developed its capacity for online delivery of resources and

maintained this until the end of the year. Staff are now confident in delivering lessons in the Academy and

online so that students isolating but well enough to study are able to attend their normal curriculum
remotely. Staffwho are also absent due to Covid-19 but wellenough to deliver lessons can do so via Teams

to the students in school. The academy is also starting a programme of introducing ipads for learning into the

school, initially with a pioneer group of staff so that within 2 years the first two cohorts of students and all

staff will be using ipads in lessons and at home. This will greatly strengthen our capacity to provide blended

or fully remote learning more efficiently.

All members of the teaching staff are highly qualified specialists in their subjects and an outstanding team of
support staff who are exceptionally loyal complements their work. The Academy was over-subscribed again

this year for September 2O2O entry with 307 children taking the entrance test and 207 nominating us as their
first preference for 160 places. Trustees had taken the decision to admit an additional 32 students into Year

7 several years ago, on a temporary basis raising the PAN to 150. This was agreed again so the total number

of places offered for September entry 2020 was 160. Most of our sixth form students gained places at

10
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Universities in August 2021 with four students going to Oxford and one to Cambridge. Many of the other
places were at Russell Group universities. Entry into Year 72 was in line with previous years at 114.

Academic enrichment over the last year has been limited by travel restrictions due to Covid 19 and lockdown
procedures. Activity Week was cancelled and all trips stopped from after Christmas 2019 for the foreseeable
future. Lockdown from March 2019 obviously affected all aspects of school life. Having said this the following
activities did take place from September 2020 to August 2021.

October 2020

Charity Bake Sale (Y8 Bubble)

November 2020
University lnterview Evening (Online Event - ZOOM)
Children in Need (Within Bubbles)

December 2020
Food Bank Appeal (All Years - Non-uniform to purchase vouchers)

Carol Service (Virtual)

January 2021
No activities

February 2021
Primary Reading Project (Online)

March 2021
Return to School

April2021
Sexual Harassment Assemblies
Easter Service (Virtua l)

May 2021
Some sports fixtures (Athletics, Cricket, and Rounder's)

June 2021
Year 11 Duke of Edinburgh (No Camp)4 days
Year 12 Earth Sciences Fieldwork
Year 9 Geography Fieldwork
Year 10 Geography Fieldwork

July 2021
Drama Practical Assessments Year 10
Medieval Day for Year 7
Y13 Gold Duke of Edinburgh (External provider but arranged by school)
Virtual Discovery Day
Summer Service (Virtual)

11
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Sporting activity was also restricted and effectively stopped. Music and school performances were also

stopped. Many students were able to perform at the Carlisle Music Festival prior to lockdown and some
produced excellent results. There has also been enthusiastic participation in student voice activities including

School Council meetings when possible during the year.

Pastoral care continues to be second to none with experienced teams of tutors and Heads of Year monitoring

closely the welfare of children every day. During lockdown, this support went online/on phone and all

students were provided with regular contacts to check their mental health and to discuss any concerns

regarding the impact of the pandemic. The use of the CPOMS recording system was instrumental in keeping

staff alert to any concerns and developments during the closure. Special Educational Needs provision has

been given meticulous attention by our exceptional SENCO and pupils have received first class careers advice

and guidance given the restraints for over half of the year.

We have taken a very proactive role over the last few years in outreach work with local primary schools. The

Head of Year 7 role was enhanced to include a responsibility for ensuring transition was a key priority for our
students. Last year the role was separated from that of Head of Year and a member of the teaching staff was

appointed with responsibility for coordinating Transition from primary to QEGS, which included all of the
outreach work. Much of this work was carried out remotely but where possible visits to catchment primaries

were made and links strengthened. The Head Teacher visits our catchment primary schools as far as is
possible to discuss the school's vision and to address any preconceptions within the community. Outreach

work has been increased and we have taken a leading role in organising primary school sporting and musical

events and projects and we have started to redevelop this programme, although again this programme was

curtailed due to COVD - 19. Open Evening and Discovery Day were cancelled with virtual tours posted on the
school website, with an increase in applications and numbers taking the entrance test. Parents' Evenings

have been moved to online events with great success. lt is intended to continue with online Parents' Evenings

into2027-22.

Key Performance lndicators
Due to Covid-19, the usual key performance indicators for exam results are not applicable this year.

The latest available attendance figures are from autumn 2020:

This data relates to absences during the coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic and should not be compared

directly to previous years. There were 3,059 sessions missed by pupils not attending in circumstances

related to coronavirus (COVID-19) - these did not count as absence within the data.
o Overall absence in autumn 2020 (2.9%l was in the lowest 2Oo/o of all schools.
. Persistent absence in autum n 2020 (4.8%l was in the lowest 20% of all schools.
. The rates of overallabsence (2.9%l and persistent absence (4.8%l in autumn 2020 were in the

lowest 20% of schools with a similar level of deprivation.

Going Concern
After making appropriate enquiries the Board of Trustees has a reasonable expectation that the academy

trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. Post year end

the ESFA issued an initial assessment based on an investigation which has been conducted over the past two

years and is still ongoing as at the date of signing the financial statements. This assessment provided for a

potential repayment of Condition lmprovement Funding amounting to f 1,502,393 to the ESFA. This amount

is still disputed by the Trustees however the Trustees believe it is prudent to recognise this liability within

the accounts for the year ended 31 August 2021.

72
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The Academy successfully bid for monies as part of the Government's Condition lmprovement Fund (ClF).

The first projects in 2OLG|2O17 were to upgrade boilers and heating, windows and roofing and life safety.
The value of these three projects was f.7,434,6O3. The amounts classified as ineligible costs by the ESFA to
be repaid are f313,823 under these three projects. A further bidin2OL712018 was to replace the 1950's
temporary timber mobiles in a defective condition. The value of the project was fL,24L,894 and the build
cost was f 1,188,570 with €1,6,422 held on retention and [35,900 already returned to the ESFA. This full
project being classified as ineligible by the ESFA.

The ongoing discussions with the ESFA are for a total liability of f 1,502,393 (being f 313,823 and f 1,188,570).
Although the final amount of the payment or the repayment terms have yet to be agreed, this liability has

been included as a creditors falling due within 1 year, therefore the balance sheet reflecting a net current
liabilities position as at 31 August 2021. The Academy continues to discuss whether this liability is valid with
the ESFA.

The student population of the Academy continues to grow with a further year of growth in year 7 and

continued interest in 5th Form. The costs of the Academy are well managed and with a sustainable
repayment schedule for the disputed debt the Trustees are confident that the Academy is able to meet its
financial obligations. During the past two years the Governance and the Management of the Academy has

been strengthened and these changes have been reflected in the School Resource Management Self-

Assessment Tool Checklist. The Trustees are fully up to date with the financial aspects of the Academy taking
a keen and watching eye through regular meetings and updates over and above those already undertaken
as part of the governing cycle.

The result of the decision by the ESFA has raised concerns surrounding the going concern assessment made
by the Trustees however the Trustees are committed to monitoring costs and to working with the ESFA on
a solution that will ensure the future provision of the Academy. For this reason, it continues to adopt the
going concern basis in preparing the financial statements. Further details regarding the adoption of the going

concern basis can be found in the Statement of Accounting Policies.

Financial Review
Most of the income for each Academy is obtained from the Department for Education(DfE) in the form
of recurrent grantq the use of which is restricted to particular purposes The grants receved from the
DfE duringthe period, ended 3l August 2021and the associated expenditure are shown as restricted funds
in the Statement of FinancialActivities.

The Academy also received grants for fixed assets from the DfE and other grant funding. ln accordance
with the Charities Statement of Recommended Practice,'Accounting and Reporting by Charities'(SORP
201.91, such grants are shown in the Statement of Financial Activities as restricted income in the fixed asset
fund. The restricted fixed asset f und balance is reduced by annual depreciation charges over the expected
useful life of the assets concerned.

During the year ending 3L August 2021, the total income was 83,629,1.32 and the total expenditure was
85,248,856 resulting in a deficit before transfers and othergains and losses of f1.,6'J.9,724.

At 31 August 2021, the net book value of tangible fixed assets was f7,769,tlg and movements in
tangible fixed assets are shown in note 13 to the financial statements. The assets were used exclusively
for providing education and the associated support services to the pupils of the academy.

13
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At 31 August2021., the Academy had total funds of f4,455,569. This comprised of the following:
Restricted generalfunds f (1,398,995)

Restricted asset funds f 7,800,336
Pension fund deficit f(2,162,000)'
Unrestricted funds f.216,228

The Academy continues to look closely at budget areas in order to monitor this going forward.

Over the past two years the Trustees of the Academy have worked in good faith to prepare and present

evidence to the ESFA to ensure that the ongoing investigation into the spending of the CIF monies has been

conducted using all available accurate information. lt is the view of the Trustees that the monies for the new

building were appropriately and correctly awarded and expended in line with guidelines of the CIF bid. The

Academy engaged specialist consultants to provide professional guidance and advise the Academy at all
points in the process and the Trustees relied on this specialist advice. lt is the recognition of the assessment

raised by the ESFA which has been classified as an in-year expenditure which has resulted in restricted general

funds being shown as a deficit as at 31 August 2021.

Built into the budget tor 202012L was a substantial amount of expenditure to cover the extra costs associated
with COVID-19. However, the budget was balanced to include the extra costs and the reduction in income.
To keep the school community safe the school invested in the following areas:

Two temporary toilet blocks to ensure that year group bubbles do not mix and this expenditure
has included into 2021/22
Extra cleaning provision was implemented with the introduction of a daytime cleaner and the
fogging of all school buildings each weekend.

Extra provision of cleaning materials to keep the school safe and to allow students to access a

broad, balanced and ambitious curriculum, as signaled by the Government in July 2020. To

enable this to be achieved extra controls have needed to be put in place to conduct practical

subjects safely. For example, the rotating of resources, the sterilising of equipment and the
purchase of extra resources to ensure resources were not shared. The school is following the
guidance from CLEAPSS.

o Extra costs were also incurred in setting up the school for lateral flow testing and PCR testing.

School staff with the support of Trustees and Cumbria Fire and Rescue Service completed the

testing in-house.

The pandemic also impacted income for a number of other areas including catering, the renting of school

facilities and pupil performances, but the loss of income has overall been offset by a comparable reduction

in cost. However, some of the lost income will have a greater effect beyond the school as donations to charity

organisations are considerably lower.

Reserves Policy
The Academy, after careful consideration of its cash flow, has concluded that the adequate range of reserves

should be f 200,000, which comes from a combination of Restricted General Funds and Unrestricted Funds.

The reason for this is to provide sufficient funds for individual projects, to maintain a hardship fund and to

provide a cushion to dealwith unexpected emergencies'

t4
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The value of free reserves held at 3l August 2021 was f2O3,772, being the unrestricted funds of f.2L6,228
less designated funds of f 13,056. This is an increase of t13,559 on unrestricted funds. The value of other
general reserves was a deficit of f 1,398,995.

At the balance sheet date, the level of free reserves is higher than the Academy's policy. The Trustees are
aware of this situation, but feel that this is a more cautious approach to take at this current time.

As noted above the deficit of restricted general funds is solely as a result of the recognition of the CtF

repayment assessment raised by the ESFA which Trustees have included within the financial statements to
the year ended 31 August 2027 on a prudent basis.

The Academy holds a deficit on the local government pension scheme of f2,\62,O00. ln the event of the
closure of the Academy, the DfE would meet this deficit.

Totalfunds amounted to f4,455,569 at 31 August 2021, representing the free reserves, the restricted general
reserve, pension reserve and restricted fixed asset funds of f7,759,729. This last category represents the
value of tangible fixed assets and the balance of unutilised DFC funding, and third part funding at the balance
sheet date, and these amounts are not available for general purposes of the academy trust.

lnvestment Policy
The Memorandum and Articles of Association govern the Trustees investment powers. The Academy's
Memorandum of Association permits the Academy to invest the monies of the Academy not immediately
required for the furtherance of its objects or upon such investments, securities or property as may be thought
fit, subject nevertheless to such conditions (if any) and such consents (if any) as may from time to time be
imposed or required by law. The Academy's Articles of Association permit the Trustees to invest, in the name
of the Academy, such part of the funds of the Academy as they may see fit and to direct

The sale or transposition of any such investments and to expend the proceeds of any such sale in furtherance
of the objects specified in the Academy's Memorandum of Association.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties
The main areas of risk are strategic, financial, economic, regulatory and operational. These have been
assessed and prioritised and systems are in place to ensure steps are taken to mitigate the risk. These are
reviewed on a regular basis.

The main risks identified are-
Safeguarding both the assets of the school and the pupils. Following safeguarding best practice and
school policy will mitigate these risks.
Financial risk of reduced funding. A rolling 3-year budget plan is in place to assist the Trustees in
making the right decisions in a timely manner. Budgeting forward helps the Governing Body prepare
for steps that would need to be taken on a significant reduction in funding.
Loss of the Academy's Ofsted rating as 'Outstanding'.
The result of the decision of the ESFA over the potential liability of f 1,502,393 presents a risk to the
Academy. The dialogue with the ESFA is ongoing and further evidence has recently been presented
to the ESFA. lf the validity of the liability cannot be overturned the Academy will look to secure an
affordable payment plan over the lifetime of the building.
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Queen Elizabeth Grammar School Penrith

Trustees' Report (Continued)

Fundraising
The School receives donations from a number of other parties, including but not limited to Friends of QEGS,

parents and local businesses. These donations, whilst very welcome, are not the result of active fundraising.

The school does raise some funds through a sponsored walk every September, although until recently this
money was raised solely for charities chosen by the students. For 77-L8,18-19 & 79-20 7O0% was used for
school fund, due to increased pressure on central funding. The academy trust does not use any external
fundraisers. The Trustees monitored all fundraising undertaken during the year.

Plans for Future Periods

Pupil Progress
The following is dependent upon the situation with COVID 19 not impacting on examination arrangements.
Even if the GCSE and A level examinations do go ahead and are used for assessment, there has been a

significant impact on the delivery of both sets of courses over both academic years 20L9-20 and 2O20-2L.

Even allowing for the introduction of Teacher Assessed Grades (TAGS) students will have been significantly
disadvantaged by lockdown and other pandemic related disruption. lt must also be noted that beyond the
academic impact, all students and staff have been operating under a great deal of stress and uncertainty for
almost two full years and that this will have had a further significant impact on students and potential
outcomes. Having said that, we at QEGS remain ambitious for our students but do temper our expectations
with a desire not to compound the mental health impact on both staff and students.

Whole school priorities in teaching and learning for the coming year are to increase the proportion of higher
grades 7-9 at GCSE and A*-B at A Level and to develop support for borderline students in making better than
expected progress. We aim to increase our Progress 8 score to exceed the level achieved in 2019 at +0.2. At
A level we will also aim to improve upon our value added from 2019 of 0.0, which placed us within the average

of Sixth Form Providers nationally. This will be done by developing better feedback to pupils about what they
need to do to improve their work in all subjects and greater use of the school's academic and pastoral tracking
systems, which have undergone a significant overhaul recently. We will also be prioritising curriculum design

to ensure we meet the revised Ofsted criteria for provision of an Outstanding Quality of Education. The Head

teacher has become an Ofsted lnspector in preparation for this change and has a greater insight into what is
expected during an inspection.

ln order to maintain close contact with parents the academy has purchased Schoolcloud, a web-based

parents' evening tool that facilitates video appointments. This has been used for all Parents' Evening

throughout 2O2O-27 with great success and will become routine for future parents evenings with or without
lockdown as the events were much more efficient and effective than face-to-face meetings.

Staffing and curriculum
We are reviewing our curriculum taking account of student needs in the 21st century and in view of
nationally imposed, historic funding cuts. The real term cuts in funding over the previous 5 years have

made cuts in staffing and resources necessary and more recent announcements regarding the National

Funding Formula still left the academy facing 3% cuts in real terms and a loss of approximately €90k per

year. Ofsted figures confirm that QEGS, in 2OL8lL9 (latest date for which figures are available) received

f.L,273,672|ess than the national average for secondary schools.

As staff leave or retire, we carefully consider any opportunities for restructuring which will benefit the

delivery of the curriculum, as well as succession planning and the budget impact. Significant restructuring of
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Queen Elizabeth Grammar School Penrith

Trustees' Report (Continued)

The Leadership Team and an increase of staff contact time from 85% to 87%has affected the efficiency of
the school's delivery and this will be closely monitored. Given the increasing student roll, it was decided that
the capacity of the leadership group required expansion. To this end, an extra Assistant Head teacher was
recruited to start in September 2O2t. We have also reviewed the effectiveness of the curriculum model
brought in in 20L4-15, which saw a reduction in time allocated to option subjects at KS4 in an effort to give
more time to English and Mathematics. The further revised model, which came into operation in 2018,
provided more time for core subjects and reduces the options to ten from eleven. Modern Foreign Language

study is also no longer compulsory. The curriculum offer will continue to be reviewed in the light of the
temporary arrangements during the pandemic from September 2019. Under these the equivalent of four
double lessons a day were delivered over a 4 week timetable and further changes were made such as the
removalof an afternoon registration slot in favour of class registers taken in each lesson on Edulink.

The decision for the school to teach in Year bubbles did have a negative effect on student and staff wellbeing
throughout the school. Staff were moving to the students in the teaching space rather than the students
moving to the staff. This movement around school impacted on the school day for teaching staff, staff had

to take their resources with them and they were away from their dedicated teaching space, apart from those
in laboratories, DT workshops, Food and Nutrition rooms and Art. Many rooms were affected by the lack of
displays and student work. However, despite the challenges the staff morale around the school remained
positive.

Continuing Professional Development
We work in partnership with the Cumbrian Association of School Leaders (CASL), The Cumbrian Association
of Secondary Headteachers (CASH), the Carlisle Secondary Learning Consortium and other Eden secondary
and primary schools through 'Excellence in Eden' projects, to enhance the continuing professional

development of the school's staff and share good practice in teaching and learning as well as contributing to
the national programme of teacher training. A programme of in-house CPD is being developed alongside the
current offer. Curriculum development is the key focus this year and the Deputy Headteacher with
responsibility for this area and is leading. Behaviour, teaching and learning are also key areas and the
Assistant Headteachers are leading on this with the help of the Teaching and Learning Group. We are also
prioritising the pastoral system and the role of form tutors and Heads of Year.

lnevitably, the pandemic has affected the level of progress and number of opportunities provided to staff in
this area since March 2019. We have provided valuable in-house sessions on issues relevant to the current
context, such as blended learning, Zoom, Teams, Edulink and Schoolcloud, all of which have been well
received and have improved the offer for students.

Sites, buildings and facilities.
During 2O2012O2t, the school has been able to make a number of improvements to the school buildings and
school site
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The roof above the history rooms were repaired and new hoppers, down pipes and drains were fitted
Pavilion roof repairs were started
New opening to the boundary wall
Complete redesign and refurbishment of tT3

Collapsed pipe in the playing fields
General painting and decorating around the school both inside and outside
Ongoing processes of fitting LED lights
Demolition of the two temporary buildings.
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Queen Elizabeth Grammar School Penrith

Trustees' Report (Continued)

Due to COVID 19 a number of extra measures have been put in place to ensure that the whole community
remained safe. These are detailed in earlier in the report. They include the addition of a further toilet blocks,

wall mounted and tabletop sanitisation stations, information posters, direction arrows on the floors
throughout all of the school buildings, the re-arrangements of classrooms for safer teaching along with the
removal of some soft furnishings. The school continues have the majority of measures in place.

The Academy has implemented various robust risk assessments to manage the control of the virus in school.
Allstaff were trained and updated on the risk assessments and the risk assessment are available on the school
website. The school adopted the model risk assessment from Cumbria County Council and adapted it for the
school. The risk assessment is a standing agenda point on the weekly SLT meeting and is reviewed on a

regular basis and updated as appropriate. The process has been very fast moving and dynamic, as the school
has responded in line with both Government and local authority guidance.

Long-term plans for the school site have been drawn up through the acquisition of a Masterplan using the
expertise of an external body, 10 Architect. This will shape the future development of the school and produce

a vision of what the site will look like in ten to fifteen years and this is available on the school website. This

itemises potential future projects should funding become available through any source.

Auditor
lnsofar as the Trustees are aware:

r there is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company's auditor is unaware
o the Trustees have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any

relevant audit information and to establish that the auditor is aware of that information.

A resolution to reappoint Saint & Co. as auditors will be proposed at the forthcoming Trustees Meeting.

The Trustees' report, incorporating a strategic report, was approved by order of the Board of Trustees, as the
company directors, on Zi/.S.tzZ and signed on the board's behalf by:

..................... r.rc

MRS T BOVING-FOSTER

18



Queen Elizabeth Grammar School Penrith

Governance Statement

Scope of Responsibility
As Trustees, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that Queen Elizabeth Grammar
School Penrith has an effective and appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However, such a

system is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can
provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

As Trustees, we have reviewed and taken account of the guidance in DfE's Governance Handbook and
competency framework for governance.

The Board of Trustees has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Head teacher, as accounting officer,
for ensuring financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and good financial
management and in accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding
agreement between Queen Elizabeth Grammar School Penrith and the Secretary of State for Education. They
are also responsible for reporting to the Board of Trustees any materialweaknesses or breakdowns in internal
control.

Governance
The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Trustees' Report and in the
Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities. The Board of Trustees has formally met 7 times during the year.
Attendance during the year at meetings of the Board of Trustees was as follows:

Trustees

T Boving-Foster (Chair of Trustees)
PE Buckland (Head teacher and Accounting Officer)
AC Worth (Staff Trustee)
CM Hansford
J Jenkins
KA Rae

R Shephard (Resigned 31.08.21)
J Mills
M Bauer
P Airey
J Ray

M Worrall
G Miller

Meetines Attended Out of a Possible

7

7

5

7

7

5

4

7

5

6

7

7

5

7

7

7

7

7

7

7

7

7

7

7

7

7

Each Trustee has a responsibility for an area of the school or a subject. These Trustees report back to the
Board of Trustees on the progress of their department and any issues the staff and pupils may have.

Reporting via sub committees allows the Board of Trustees an overview of all the areas discussed by Trustees,
including financial and educational needs.

The Board of Trustees completed a formal review recommended by the National Governance Association
(NGA) in June 2020 to identify skills needed by Trustees during the financial year. The results of this were
analysed in a Full Board of Trustees meeting to ensure that any future recruitment would address any skill
gaps. The Board of Trustees has remained stable in terms of its members and has the required number of
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Queen Elizabeth Grammar School Penrith

Governance Statement (Contin ued)

Trustees, but, if possible, a new Trustee with educational skills will be invited to join. The intention is to repeat
this exercise on a twelve to eighteen months' rotation basis. Furthermore, all new and existing Trustees are
encouraged to undertake modules via a Governo/s E-Learning online system, which introduces governance
and allows the participant to focus on specific areas they are less familiar with.

The finance and pay committee is a sub-committee of the main Board of Trustees. lts purpose is to allocate
and monitor financial resources effectively and efficiently in line with the Academies Accounts Direction
2O2O/2L in order to meet the short, medium and long term objectives of the Academy.

Attendance at meetings in the year was as follows:

Trustees

KA Rae (Chair of Finance & Pay)

PE Buckland (Head teacher and Accounting Officer)
R Shephard
J Ray

P Airey
T Boving-Foster (Chair of Trustees)
M Worrall
G Miller

Meetings Attended Out of a Possible

5

5

1

6

5

6

5

5

Over the past few years the Trustees have continued to strengthen the breadth of knowledge and expertise
amongst the Trustees. This expertise has helped the Academy work closely with the leadership in the school
and act as a critical friend to ensure compliance and this is reflected in the School Resource Management
Self-Assessment Tool Check list and also the rewriting of the Financial Procedures Manual (learning lessons
from the dealings with the ESFA) together with systematic and regular reviews by the Finance and pay
Committee (including regular lnternal Audits) and also the Full Trustees Body.

Review of Value for Money
As accounting officer, the Head teacher has responsibility for ensuring that the academy trust delivers good
value in the use of public resources. The accounting officer understands that value for money refers to the
educational and wider societal outcomes achieved in return for the taxpayer resources received.

The Accounting Officer considers how the trust's use of its resources has provided good value for money

during each academic year, and reports to the Board of Trustees where value for money can be improved,
including the use of benchmarking data or by using a framework where appropriate. The accounting officer
for the academy trust has delivered improved value for money during the year by:

lmproving educotionol outcomes with the some resource; achieving successful outcomes for our
students is our top priority. We have an extremely high proportion of students in Year 11 achieving five

or more GCSEs grades 7-9, including English and Maths. This figure was97% in 2019. Results from 2020

or 2O2t are not available as explained above. Also in 2019, the school achieved a Progress 8 score of
+0.2, placing the school in the above average category nationally. The vast majority stay on into the Sixth

Form and go on to achieve the necessary A Level grades to obtain a place at their first choice university.

The ALPs progression grade for 2019 at A level placed the school in the average category for value added.

No further data is available due to the pandemic.
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5

6

5

6

6

6

5
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Queen Elizabeth Grammar School Penrith

Governance Statement (Continued)

Maximising income generation; building on the refurbishment of its Sports Hall at the end of 2073174,
there has been a focus on hire of facilities to the wider community. The school has enjoyed great success
in the past in attracting a number of clubs and organisations to enjoy using the enhanced sport facilities;
however, this has been greatly curtailed this year.

Prudent use ol reserves; this has prevented the need for cuts to staff or to the curriculum.

The Purpose of the System of lnterna! Control
The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all
risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives. lt can, therefore, only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an on-going process designed
to identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of academy trust policies, aims and objectives, to
evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage
them efficiently, effectively and economically. The system of internal control has been in place in Queen
Elizabeth Grammar School Penrith for the period 1 September 2O2O to 31 August2O2L and up to the date of
approval of the annual report and financial statements.

Capacity to Handle Risk

The Board of Trustees has reviewed the key risks to which the academy trust is exposed together with the
operating, financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The Board
of Trustees is of the view that there is a formal on-going process for identifying, evaluating and managing the
academy trust's significant risks that has been in place for the period 1 September 2020 to 31 August2027
and up to the date of approvalof the annual report and financialstatements. The governing body regularly
reviews this process.

The Risk and Control Framework
The academy trust's system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular management
information and administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation
and accountability. ln particular, it includes:

comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic financial
reports which are reviewed and agreed by the Board of Trustees
regular reviews by the finance and pay committee of reports which indicate financial performance
against the forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure programmes
setting targets to measure financial and other performance
clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines
identification and management of risks

The Board of Trustees has considered the need for a specific internalaudit function and has decided:

On a six monthly basis, the reviewer reports to the Board of Trustees, through the Finance & pay Committee
on the operation of the systems of control and on the discharge of the Board of Trustees' Financial
responsibilities and annually prepares an annual summary report to the committee outlining the areas
reviewed, key findings, recommendations and conclusions to help the committee consider actions and assess
year on year progress. As part of each audit, the reviewer spends the day in school with the Finance team
and carries out deep dive reviews of specific areas. The areas for review are randomly selected and includes
reviews of income, expenditure and reporting. During the current year, the review areas have specifically
included salaries and payroll, the processes for obtaining quotes for work and also reviewing and
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Queen Elizabeth Grammar School Penrith

Governa nce Statement (Continued)

amending where appropriate the financial procedures. From 1st September 2O2t the reviewer will report to
the Risk and Audit Committee.

Review of Effectiveness
As Accounting Officer, the Head teacher has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the
system of internal control. During the year in question the review has been informed by:

a

a

the work of the internal and external auditor
the work of the executive managers within the academy trust who have responsibility for the
development and maintenance of the internal controlframework
The School Business Manager

The accounting officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system of
internal control by the finance & pay committee and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous
improvement of the system is in place.

Approved byorderof the membersof the boardof Trustees ,^..%.ltlZ.?.............. and signed on its behalf
by:

MRS T BOVING-FOSTER

Chair of Trustees

wrul
tyrR PE BUCKLAND

HeadTeacher / Accounting Officer
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Queen Elizabeth Grammar School Penrith

Statement of Regularity, Propriety and Compliance

As Accounting officer of Queen Elizabeth Grammar School Penrith I have considered my responsibility to
notify the academy trust board of trustees and the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of material
irregularity, impropriety and non-compliance with terms and conditions of all funding received by the
academy trust, under the funding agreement in place between the academy trust and the Secretary of State
for Education. As part of my consideration I have had due regard to the requirements of the Academies
Financial Handbook 2020

I confirm that I and the academy trust board of trustees are able to identify any material irregular or improper
use of funds by the academy trust, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding
under the academy trust's funding agreement and the Academies Financial Handbook 2020.

I confirm that no instances of material irregularity have occurred but would draw your attention to the details
below.

After the 31 August 2027 year end the ESFA issued an initial assessment based on the investigation which
has been conducted over the past two years which resulted in the Academy's accounts being modified for
that two year period as the potential liability was not known. This has now resulted in a potential repayment
of f7,5O2,393 to the ESFA which is still disputed but the Trustees believe it is prudent to recognise this liability
in the accounts to 3l August 2021. The Trustees continue to question of the validity of this liability and are
in dialogue with the ESFA.

HeadTeacher / Accounting Officer
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Queen Elizabeth Grammar School Penrith

Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities

The Trustees of Queen Elizabeth Grammar School Penrith (who are also the directors of the charitable
company for the purposes of company law) are responsible for preparing the Trustees' Report and the
financial statements in accordance with the Annual Accounts Direction published by the Education and
Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdom Accounting Standards {United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice) and applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under
company law, the Trustees must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the charitable company and of its incoming resources
and application of resources, including its income and expenditure, for that period. ln preparing these
financial statements, the Trustees are required to:

select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently
observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP 20L9 and the Academies Accounts
Direction 2O2O/21.

make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent
state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the financialstatements
prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume
that the charitable company will continue in business

The Trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and
explain the charitable company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the
financial position of the charitable company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements
comply with the Companies Act 2006.They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the
charitable company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud
and other irregu larities.

The Trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company
applies financial and other controls, which conform to the requirements both of propriety and of good
financial management. They are also responsible for ensuring grants received from ESFA/DfE have been
applied for the purposes intended.

The Trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial
information included on the charitable company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing

the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other
jurisdictions.

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees ,^ .edt.lZ,l.........anO signed on it's behalf by

MRS T BOVING.FOSTER

Chair of Trustees
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Queen Elizabeth Grammar School Penrith

lndependent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements to the
Members of Queen Elizabeth Grammar Schoo! Penrith

Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of Queen Elizabeth Grammar School Penrith forthe year ended
3lAugust 2021 which comprise the Statement of Financial Activities (including income and expenditure
account), the Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Cash Flows and notes to the financial
statements, includ ing a su mmary of significant accou nting policies. The fina ncial reporting f ra mework that
has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom AccountingStandards (United

Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including FRS 102 "The FinancialReporting Standard
applicable in the UK and Republic of lreland".

ln our opinion the financial statements:

give a true and fair view of the state of the charitable company's affairs as at 3L August 2021 and of
its incoming resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure, for the year

then ended;
have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting

Practice;
have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act2006.

have been prepared in accordance with the Charities SORP 2015 and Academies Accounts Direction
2020121..

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with lnternational Standards on Auditing (UK) {lSAs (UK)) and

applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditor's
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the
charitable company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Queen Elizabeth Grammar School Penrith

!ndependent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements to the
Members of Queen Elizabeth Grammar School Penrith (Continued)

Material uncertainty related to going concern
We draw your attention to note 31 in the financial statements, regarding the repayment of CIF monies to the
ESFA. As yet the ESFA have not confirmed the repayment terms of the f 1,502,393 however the Trustees
have prudently included the full amount as a creditor being owed within one year. As stated in note 31, these
events and availability of the necessary cashflow to make this repayment indicate that a material uncertainty
exists that may cast significant doubt on the company's ability to continue as a going concern. Our opinion
is not modified in respect of this matter.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the trustees with respect to going concern are described in the
relevant sections of this report.

Other information
The trustees are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, other than the financial statements and ourauditor's report thereon. lt includes
the Reference and Administrative Details, the Trustees Report and the Governance Statement. Our opinion
on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise
explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusionthereon.

ln connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information

and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. lf we

identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine
whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other
information. lf, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
ln our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

the information given in the Report of the trustees' for the financial year for which the financial

statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

the Report of the trustees has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

Responsibilities of trustees
As explained more fully in the Statement of Trustees Responsibilities. the trustees (who are also the
directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and

for such internal control as the trustees determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial

statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud orerror.

ln preparing the financial statements, the trustees are responsible for assessing the charitable

company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going

concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the governors either intend to liquidate

the charitable company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Queen Elizabeth Grammar School Penrith

lndependent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements to the
Members of Queen Elizabeth Grammar School Penrith (Continued)

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with lSAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can

arise from fraud or error and are considered material il individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

lrregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design
procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of
irregularities, including fraud.

The extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities including fraud

Our approach to identifying and assessing the risks of material misstatement in respect of irregularities,
including fraud and non-compliance with laws and regulations, was as follows:

o the engagement partner ensured that the engagement team collectively had the appropriate
competence, capabilities and skills to identify or recognise non-compliance with applicable laws and
regulations;

. we identified the laws and regulations applicable to the charity through discussions with trustees and

other managemenU
. we focused on specific laws and regulations which we considered may have a direct material effect on

the financial statements or the operations of the charity;
. we assessed the extent of compliance with the laws and regulations identified above through making

enquiries of management and inspecting legal correspondence; and
o ldentified laws and regulations were communicated within the audit team regularly and the team

remained alert to instances of non-compliance throughout the audit.

We assessed the susceptibility of the charity's financial statements to material misstatement, including
obtaining an understanding of how fraud might occur, by:

. making enquiries of management as to where they considered there was susceptibility to fraud, their
knowledge of actual, suspected and alleged fraud;

o To address the risk of fraud through management bias and override of controls, we:
r performed analytical procedures to identifli any unusual or unexpected relationships;
o tested journal entries to identify unusual transactions;
r assessed whether judgements and assumptions made in determining the accounting estimates set

out in the accounting policies were indicative of potential bias; and
o investiBated the rationale behind significant or unusualtransactions

ln response to the risk of irregularities and non-compliance with laws and regulations, we designed
procedures which included, but were not limited to:

o agreeing financial statement disclosures to underlying supporting documentation;
o readinB the minutes of meetings of those charged with governance;
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Queen Elizabeth Grammar School Penrith

lndependent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements to the
Members of Queen Elizabeth Grammar School Penrith (Continued)

o enquiring of management as to actual and potential litigation and claims; and
r reviewing correspondence with relevant regulators including the Charities Commission, ESFA and the

company's legal advisors.

There are inherent limitations in our audit procedures described above. The more removed that laws and

regulations are from financial transactions, the less likely it is that we would become aware of non-

compliance. Auditing standards also limit the audit procedures required to identify non-compliance with laws

and regulations to enquiry of the trustees and other management and the inspection of regulatory and legal

correspondence, if any.

Material misstatements that arise due to fraud can be harder to detect than those that arise from error as

they may involve deliberate concealment or collusion.

Afurtherdescription of our responsibilities forthe audit of the financialstatements is located on the Financial

Reporting Council's website at www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our
auditor's report.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the
Financial Reporting Council's website at www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms
part of our Report of lndependent Auditors.

Use of our report
This report is made solely to the company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part
16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
company's members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no

other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to
anyone other than the company and the company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this
report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Mr lan Thompson (Senior Statutory Auditor)

For and on behalf of
Saint & Co

Chartered Accountants & Statutory Auditors
The Old Police Station, Church Street, Ambleside, Cumbria, LA22 0BT

a:lrlL2-Date:
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lndependent Reporting Accountant's Assurance Report on
Regularity to Queen Elizabeth Grammar Schoo! Penrith and the
Education and Skills Funding Agency

ln accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 15 August 2018 and further to the
requirements of the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies Accounts

Direction 202O/2L, we have carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether the
expenditure disbursed and income received by Queen Elizabeth Grammar School Penrith during the period

0L September2O2O to 31August 2021, have been applied to the purposes identified by Parliament and the
financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

Respective responsibilities of Queen Elizabeth Grammar School Penrith's Accounting Officer and the
Reporting Accountant
The accounting officer is responsible under the requirements of Queen Elizabeth Grammar School

Penrith's funding agreement with the Secretary of State for Education dated 31 March 2011 and the
Academies Financial Handbook, extant from L September 2020, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and

income received is applied for the purposes intended by Parliament and the financialtransactions conform to
the authorities which govern them.

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession's ethical
guidance and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the
requirements of the Academies Accounts Direction 2O2O121. We report to you whether anything has come

to our attention in carrying out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed

and income received during the period 01 September 2O2O to 31 August 2027 have not been applied to
purposes intended by Parliament or that the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which
govern them.

Approach
We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Framework and Guide for External Auditors and

Reporting Accountant of Academy Trusts issued by ESFA. We performed a limited assurance engagement as

defined in our engagement letter.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and

explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion
on regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and
consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters
that might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive
opinion.

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety
of the academy trust's income and expenditure.
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lndependent Reporting Accountant's Assurance Report on
Regularity to Queen Elizabeth Grammar Schoo! Penrith and the
Education and Skills Funding Agency (Continued)

The work undertaken to draw our conclusion includes:

a

a

a

having a general awareness of regularity and propriety whilst conducting the statutory audit
function;
reviewing if extra-contractual payments for staff have been made in accordance with the
Handbook;
reviewing if borrowing agreements, including leases to ensure they have been made in
accordance with the Handbook;
reviewing the minutes of the meeting of the main committees during the year;
reviewing expenditure to check that it was not ultra vires to the charitable objectives;
obtaining trustee/ governor's declaration of interests.

Conclusion
ln the course of our work, except for the matters listed below nothing has come to our attention which
suggests that in all material respects the expenditure disbursed and income received during the period
01 September2O2O to 31August2021. has not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament and
the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

As referred to within the Accounting Officer's Statement on Regularity, Propriety and Compliance the school
has been in discussions with the ESFA following an initial assessment of a potential liability of f 1,502,393
based on an investigation that is still ongoing, regarding the spending of the Condition lmprovement
Funding. The trustees have included this potential liability to be prudent but are still in discussions with the
ESFA regarding the validity of the findings from their investigation.

Use of our Report
This report is made solely to Queen Elizabeth Grammar School Penrith and ESFA in accordance with the
terms of our engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to Queen Elizabeth
Grammar School Penrith and ESFA those matters we are required to state in a report and for no other
purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other
than Queen Elizabeth Grammar School Penrith and the ESFA, for our work, for this report, or for the
conclusion we have formed.

--\r*6(=JD)-

Mr !an Thompson (Reporting Accountant)

For and on behalf of
Saint & Co

Chartered Accountants & Statutory Auditors
The Old Police Station, Church Street, Ambleside, Cumbria, LA22 0BT

ortu'.3e-lilt=
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Queen Elizabeth Grammar School Penrith

Statement of Financia! Activities

(including lncome and Expenditure Account)

for the year ended 31 August 2021

Unrestricted
Note Funds

f

3-
lncome and endowments from:
Donatlons and capital grants
Charitable activities:
Funding for the academy trust's
educational operations

Other trading activities
lnvestments

4
5

6

L30,242
L7,2t9

45L

Restricted
General

Funds
f

3,360

4,933,60s
16,386

Restricted
Fixed
Asset
Funds

C

30,262

Total
202L

C

33,622

5,063,847
33,60s

45]-

Tota!
2020

€

46,987

4,6L6,329
86,090

L,826

Total L47,9t2 4,953,351 30,262 5,131,525 4,75L,232

Expenditure on:
Raising funds (5,902) (32,888)
Charitable activities:
Academy trust educational
operations 7,8 (L44,O621 (4,899,7821

- (38,790) (43,786)

(L66,222) (5,210,066) (5,045,807)

Total 149,964 4,932,670 L66,222 5,248,856 (5,089,593)

Net income / (expenditure)

Extraordinary items

Transfer between funds

Other recognised Bains / (losses):
Actuarial (losses) / gains on defined

(2,052) 20,687

(1,502,393)

Ls,7tL (40,830)

(13s,960) (117,331) (338,361)

- (1,502,393)

25,LLg

9

18

L8,28 50,000 50,000 (176,000)

Net movement in funds 13,659 (L,472,542) (110,841) (L,569,7241 (514,351)

Reconciliation of funds
Total funds brought forward 202,569 (2,099,452) 7,gLt,L76 6,025,293 5,539,654
Totalfunds carried forward 2L6,228 (3,560,994) 7,800,335 4,4ss,s69 6,ozs,zg3
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Queen Elizabeth Grammar School Penrith

Statement of Financial Position
as at 31 August 2O2t
Company number: 07584063

Fixed assets
Tangible assets

Current assets
Stock
Debtors
Cash at bank and in hand

Liabilities
Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Creditors: Amounts falling due after more than
one year

Net assets excluding pension Iiability

Defined benefit pension scheme liability

Total net assets

Funds of the academy trust:
Restricted funds
- Fixed asset funds
- Restricted income fund
- Pension reserve

Total restricted funds

Unrestricted income funds

Tota! funds

(L,066,173l,

Notes 2021 202t
ff

7,769,129

2020
f

4,595
201,442
385,630

592,667

(2s2,7L4)

7,9L7,t76
19,s48

(2,108,000)

2020
f

7,880,262

339,953

8,220,2Ls

(86,922)

8,133,293

(2,108,000)

6,O2s,293

5,822,724

202,569

6,O25,293

13

L4

15

4,429
L4L,L7O
602,983

748,582

(L,8t4,755)

18 7,800,335
18 (1,398,994)
18 (2,L62,OO0)

6,702,956

(8s,387)

6,6L7,569

(2,L62,OOO\

4,455,569

16

L7

28

The financial statements were approved
and are signed on their behalf by:-

MRS T BOVING.FOSTER
Chair of Trustees

5,747,734

2L6,228

4,455,569

MR

18

by the Trustees and authorised for issue on ..Ail:/Zt

32

Head Teacher/Accounting Officer
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Queen Elizabeth

Statement of Cash Flows

Grammar School Penrith

Notes

22
23
24

period

for the year ended 3t August2O2l

Cash flows from operating activities

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Cash flows from investing activities

Change in cash and cash equivalents in the reporting

Cash and cash equivalents at 01 September 2O2O

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 August 2021

2021
f

2020
f

2L9,tts (90,825)
(2,156) (3,380)
(se5) 17,O87

2L6,353 (77,LLB)

385,530 463,748

25 502,983 386,630
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Queen Elizabeth Grammar School Penrith

Notes to the Financia! Statements for the year ended 31 August
202L

Statement of accounting policies
A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied consistently,
except where noted), judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below.

General lnformation
The academy trust is a private company limited by guarantee, registered in England and Wales
and an exempt charity. The address of the registered office is Ullswater Road, Penrith, Cumbria,
CA11 7EG. United Kingdom.

Basis of Preparation & Statement of Compliance
The financial statements of the academy trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have
been prepared under the historical cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting
Standard Applicable in the UK and Republic of lreland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by
Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in
accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of lreland
(FRS 102) (Charities SORP (FRS 1.021), the Academies Accounts Direction 2O2O/21issued by ESFA,

the Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act 2006.

The financial statements are prepared in sterling, which is the functional currency of the entity.

Going Concern
The trustees assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate i.e. whether there are any
material uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability
of the company to continue as a going concern. The trustees make this assessment in respect of
a period of at least one year from the date of authorisation for issue of the financial statements
and have concluded that the academy trust has adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future. As disclosed in the Trustees' Report and Note 31 to these
financial statements, the ESFA assessment raised in respect of the Condition lmprovement
Funding grants has been included within liabilities falling due within one year at the year end. This

has resulted in a net current liability position of f 1,066,173 at the year end date. The Trustees
have taken the decision to recognize this liability as being fully repayable within one year due to
the lack of a formal agreement of repayment terms with the ESFA as well as the continuity of
discussions regarding the validity of the liability. The Trustees are confident if the full amount is

ultimately repayable that with reasonable repayment terms being agreed with the ESFA they will
have sufficient funds available to meet those liabilities as they fall due. The operational forecasts

for the next 12 months shows that a sufficient surplus will be generated to meet any reasonable

repayments requested. Due to these circumstances the Trustees believe it is appropriate to
consider the Academy Trust a going concern for the period of 12 months from the date of signing

these financial statements.

lncome
All incoming resources are recognised when the academy trust has entitlement to the funds, the

receipt is probable and the amount can be measured reliably.
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Queen Elizabeth Grammar School Penrith

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 August
2O2L (Continued)

Statement of accounting policies (Continued)

lncome (Continued)

Grants
Grants are included in the Statement of Financial Activities on a receivable basis. The

balance of income received for specific purposes but not expended during the period is
shown in the relevant funds on the balance sheet. Where income is received in advance of
meeting any performance- related conditions there is not unconditional entitlement to the
income and its recognition is deferred and included in creditors as deferred income until
the performance-related conditions are met. Where entitlement occurs before income is

received, the income is accrued.

GeneralAnnualGrant is recognised in full in the Statement of FinancialActivities in the year

for which it is receivable and any abatement in respect of the period is deducted from
income and recognised as a liability.

Capital grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditional entitlement to the grant.

Unspent amounts of capital grants are reflected in the balance sheet in the restricted fixed

asset fund. Capital grants are recognised when there is entitlement and are not deferred
over the life of the asset on which they are expended.

Donations
Donations are recognised on a receivable basis (where there are no performance-related
conditions) where the receipt is probable and the amount can be reliably measured.

Other lncome
Other income, including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the period it is receivable and

to the extent the academy trust has provided the goods or services.

Donated goods, facilities and services
Goods donated for resale are included at fair value, being the expected proceeds from sale
less the expected costs of sale. lf it is practical to assess the fair value at receipt, it is

recognised in stock and 'lncome from other trading activities'. Upon sale, the value of the
stock is charged against'lncome from other trading activities'and the proceeds are
recognised as 'lncome from other trading activities'. Where it is impractical to fair value the
items due to the volume of low value items they are not recognised in the financial
statements until they are sold. This income is recognised within 'lncome from other trading
activities'.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 August
2O2L (Continued)

Statement of accounting policies (Continued)

lncome (Continued)

Donated fixed assets (excluding Transfers on conversion/intotrust)
Where the donated good is a fixed asset it is measured at fair value, unless it is impractical
to measure this reliably, in which case the cost of the item to the donor should be used. The
gain is recognised as income from donations and a corresponding amount is included in the
appropriate fixed asset category and depreciated over the useful economic life in
accordance with the academy trust's accounting policies.

Expenditure
Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic
benefit to a third party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in
settlement and the amount of the obligation can be measured reliably. Expenditure is classified
by activity. The costs of each activity are made up of the total of direct costs and shared costs,
including support costs involved in undertaking each activity. Direct costs attributable to a single
activity are allocated directly to that activity. Shared costs which contribute to more than one
activity and support costs which are not attributable to a single activity are apportioned between
those activities on a basis consistent with the use of resources. Central staff costs are allocated on
the basis of time spent, and depreciation charges allocated on the portion of the asset's use.

Expenditure on Raising Funds
This includes all expenditure incurred by the academy trust to raise funds for its charitable
purposes and includes costs of all fundraising activities events and non-charitable trading.
Charitable Activities
These are costs incurred on the academy trust's educational operations, including support
costs and costs relating to the governance of the academy trust apportioned to charitable
activities.

All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT.

Tangible Fixed Assets
Assets, individually, costing f500 or more are

at cost, net of depreciation and any provision
capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are carried
for impairment.

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the
government or from the private sector, they are included in the Statement of Financial Position

at cost and depreciated over their expected useful economic life. Where there are specific

conditions attached to the funding requiring the continued use of the asset, the related grants are

credited to a restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial Activities and carried

forward in the Statement of Financial Position. Depreciation on the relevant assets is charged

directly to the restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial Activities. Where tangible

fixed assets have been acquired with unrestricted funds, depreciation on such assets is charged

to the unrestricted fund.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 August
2O2t (Continued)

Statement of accounting policies (Continued)

Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets other than freehold land and assets under
construction, at rates calculated to write off the cost of each asset on a straight-line basis over its
expected useful life, as follows:

a

a

a

a

o

Leasehold property - land
Leasehold property - buildings
Fixtures, furniture and equipment
Computer equipment and software
Motor vehicles

over the term of the lease

over estimated remaining useful life
4 years straight line
3 years straight line
4 years straight line

Assets in the course of construction are included at cost. Depreciation on these assets is not
charged until they are brought into use and reclassified to freehold or leasehold land and
buildings.

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the
carrying value of fixed assets and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments.
lmpairment losses are recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities.

Liabilities
Liabilities are recognised when there is an obligation at the balance sheet date as a result of a past

event, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settlement, and the
amount of the settlement can be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount that
the academy trust anticipates it will pay to settle the debt or the amount it has received as

advanced payments for the goods or services it must provide.

Public Benefit Entity Concessionary Loans
Public benefit entity concessionary loans shall initially be measured at the amount received and
recognised in the statement of financial position. ln subsequent years, the carrying amount of
concessionary loans in the financial statements shall be adjusted to reflect any accrued interest
payable.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 August
2O2L (Continued)

Statement of accounting policies (Continued)

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the academy trust has an obligation at the reporting date as a
result of a past event which it is probable will result in the transfer of economic benefits and the
obligation can be estimated reliably.

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the amounts required to settle the obligation.
Where the effect of the time value of money is material, the provision is based on the present
value of those amounts, discounted at the pre-tax discount rate that reflects the risks specific to
the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised within interest payable and similar
charges.

Leased Assets
Rentals under operating leases are charged on a straight line basis over the lease term.

Financial lnstruments
The academy trust only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102. The financial
assets and financial liabilities of the academy trust and their measurement basis are as follows:

Financial assets - trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments
measured at amortised cost as detailed in note L4. Prepayments are not financial instruments.

Cash at bank - is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value.

Financial liabilities - trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are
measured at amortised cost as detailed in notes 15 and 16. Taxation and social security are not
included in the financial instruments disclosure definition. Deferred income is not deemed to be

a financial liability, as the cash settlement has already taken place and there is an obligation to
deliver services rather than cash or another financial instrument.

Stock
Unsold catering and stationery stocks are valued at the lower of cost or net realisable value.

Taxation
The academy trust is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph L Schedule 6 of the Finance

Act 2010 and therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax
purposes.

Accordingly, the academy trust is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital
gains received within categories covered by part 11, chapter 3 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or
Section 256 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains AcL1992, to the extent that such income or gains

are applied exclusively to charitable purposes.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 August
2O2t (Continued)

Statement of accounting policies (ContinuedI

Pensions Benefits
Retirement benefits to employees of the academy trust are provided by the Teachers' Pension
Scheme ('TPS') and the Local Government Pension Scheme ('LGPS'). These are defined benefit
schemes.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated to spread the cost of pensions
over employees' working lives with the academy trust in such a way that the pension cost is a

substantially level percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are
determined by the Government Actuary on the basis of quadrennial valuations using a prospective
unit credit method. TPS is an unfunded multi-employer scheme with no underlying assets to
assign between employers. Consequently, the TPS is treated as a defined contribution scheme
for accounting purposes and the contributions recognised in the period to which they relate.

The LGPS is a funded multi-employer scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the
academy trust in separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at
fairvalue and liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method
and discounted at a rate equivalent to the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond
of equivalent term and currency to the liabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least
triennially and are updated at each balance sheet date. The amounts charged to net
income/(expenditure) are the current service costs and the costs of scheme introductions, benefit
changes, settlements and curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs as incurred. Net
interest on the net defined benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the Statement of Financial
Activities and comprises the interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income
on the scheme assets, calculated by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning
of the period by the rate used to discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the
interest income on the scheme assets and the actual return on the scheme assets is recognised in
other recognised gains and losses.

Actuarialgains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses.

Fund Accounting
Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of
the charitable objects of the academy trust at the discretion of the trustees.

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes
imposed by funders where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by
the funder/donor and include grants from the Education and Skills Funding Agency.

39



Queen Elizabeth Grammar Schoo! Penrith

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 August
2O2L (Continued)

Statement of accounting policies (Continued)

Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience
and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
The academy trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting
accounting estimates and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results.
The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on
a number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The

assumptions used in determining the net cost (income) for pensions include the discount rate.
Any changes in these assumptions, which are disclosed in note 27,will impact the carrying amount
of the pension liability.

Furthermore a roll forward approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial valuation
performed at 3L March 2019 has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at 31

August 2021. Anydifferences between the figures derived from the roll forward approach and a

full actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying amount of the pension liability.

The annual depreciation charge is sensitive to the estimated useful economic lives of assets. The

useful economic lives of property were initially based on a professional valuation report using

their judgement and experience. These useful economic lives, together with those of other assets,

are assessed annually by the governors, and changed when necessary to reflect current thinking
on their remaining lives.

Agency Arrangements
The academy trust acts as an agent in distributing 16-19 bursary funds from ESFA. Payments
received from ESFA and subsequent disbursements to students are excluded from the statement
of financial activities as the academy trust does not have control over the charitable application
of the funds. The academy trust can use up to 5% of the allocation towards its own administration

costs and this is recognised in the statement of financial activities. The funds received and paid

and any balances held are disclosed in note 29.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 August
2O2L (Continued)

General Annual Grant (CAG)

Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of State the academy trust was subject to limits
at 31" August2021, on the amount of GAG that could be carried forward from one year to the next.
An amount equal to 1.2%of GAG could be carried forward, of which upto2Yo could be used for
general recurrent purposes, with any balance being available for premises/capital purposes.

The academy trust has not exceeded these limits during the year ended 31 August 2021.

Donations and capital trants
Restricted

Fixed
Asset
Funds

f
20,594
9,668

3,350 30,262 33,622 46,987

The income from donations and capital grants was f 33,622 12020: f46,987) of which f 3,360 was
restricted (2020: f NIL) and f30,262 was restricted fixed assets (2020: f46,987)

Capital grants
Other donations

Restricted
General

Funds

f

3,360

Total
2021

C

20,594
L3,O28

Total
2020

e
20,155
26,832
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Queen Elizabeth Grammar School Penrith

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 3t August
2O2t (Continued)

Funding for the academy trust's educationa! operations

DfE / ESFA grants
General Annual Grant (GAG)

Pupil Premium
Teachers' Pension grant
Other DfE / ESFA grants

Other Bovernment grants
Local authority grants

COVID-19 additionalfunding (DfE / ESFA)

Catch-up premium
Other DfE/ESFA COVID-19 funding

covlD-19 additional funding (non DfE / ESFAI

Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme grant
Other COVID-19 funding

Unrestricted
Funds

€

Restricted
Funds

€
4,489,468

28,637
L80,772
65,298

Total
2021
f

4,489,468
28,637

L80,772
6s,298

Total
2020*

C

4,L22,236
29,555

175,222
27,553

4,764,775 4,764,L75 4,354,666

25,019

58,320
(1,633)

9,447
43,240

25,OLg

s8,320
(1,633)

9,44L
43,240

7,4O5

L2,8tO

2s,L69

L34,387 L34,387 45,384

Other income from the academy trust's
educational operations L30,242 35,043 165,285 2L6,279

L30,242 4,933,605 5,063,847 4,6L6,329

The funding for the academy trust's educational operations was f5,063,847 (2020: f-4,6L6,3291 of
which f730,247 was unrestricted (2020: 8757,L331and f4,933,605 was restricted (2020: f4,459,7971.

The academy received f 58,320 of funding for catch-up premium and costs incurred in respect of
this funding totalled f.45,284with the remaining f 13,035 to be spent in2027122.

The academy furloughed some of its catering and site staff under the government's CJRS. The

funding received of f9,44L (2O2O: t25,159) relates to staff costs in respect of 7 staff (2020:7 staff)

which are included within note 9 below as appropriate.

*Following the reclassification in the Academies Accounts Direction 2020127 of some grants received

from the Department for Education and ESFA, the academy trust's funding for Pupil Premium and

Teachers Pension grant is no longer reported under the Other DfE Group grants heading, but as

separate lines under the Other DfE/ESFA grants heading. The prior year numbers have been

reclassified.
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Other trading activities
Unrestricted

Funds
f

5,688
8,056
3,475

Restricted
Funds

f

420
15,966

Total
2021

€
s,688
8,476

L9,44L

Total
2020

€
L8,6L5
2s,353
42,L22

Hire of facilities
lncome from other charitable activities
lncome from ancillary trading activities

The income from other trading
unrestricted (2020: f49,405) and

lnvestment income

L7,2L9 15,386 33,505 86,090

activities was f 33,605 (2020: f 86,090) of which f17,21.9 was
f 16,386 was restricted (2020: f36,685)"

Unrestricted Restricted
Funds Funds

CC
45t

Total
202L

E

45L

Total
2020

E

!,826Short term deposits

45L 45L 7,826

The income from investment income was f.451(2020: €L,826) all of which was unrestricted.
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Expenditure

Expenditure on raising funds:
Direct costs

Academy's educational operations:
Direct costs
Allocated support costs

Direct staff costs
Books, Apparatus and Stationery
Examination fees
Trip costs
Other direct costs
Depreciation

Total direct costs

Staff
Costs

E

3,5O2

3,48L,743
707,349

Premises Other
f€

Total
202L

E

Total
2020

E

387,598

35,288 38,790 43,786

337,3LL 3,819,054 3,670,640
295,065 !,39L,OL2 L,375,L67

4,792,594 387,598 668,664 5,248,855 5,089,593

Net income / (expenditure) for the period includes:

Operating lease rentals
Depreciation
Fees payable to auditor for:
- audit
- other services

Charitable activities

Direct costs - educational operations
Support costs - educational operations

Analysis of direct costs

Total
202t

€
LO,LzO

!42,44L

8,850
4,9L3

Total
2020

C

L4,823
L45,673

8,800
5,150

Total
202t
C.

3,819,054
L,39L,OLz

Total
20.20

C

3,670,640
L,375,L67

s,210,065 s,04s,807

Unrestricted
f

Restricted
f

3,48t,743
54,620
80,080
L5,764
34,406

L42,447

Total
202L
t

3,48L,743
64,620
80,080
L5,764
34,406

L42,441

Total
2020
e

3,332,369
41,650
87,L48
32,900
30,900

L45,673
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Charitable activities (Continued)

Analysis of support costs

Queen Elizabeth Grammar School Penrith

Support staff costs
Technology costs
Premises costs
Legal costs - other
Other support costs
Governance costs

Total support costs

Unrestricted
f
7L,367

72,695

Restricted
€

635,982
83,985

387,s98
7,592

LLz,l20
19,683

Total
2021
C

707,349
83,985

387,s98
7,592

184,815
19,683

Total
2020
€

759,O84
67,579

334,490
7,zto

186,481
20,323

Total
2020
c.

Repayment of CIF monies

L,5O2,393

After the 31 August 2O2tyear end the ESFA issued an initial assessment based on an investigation
which has been conducted over the past two years. This has resulted in a potential repayment of
f 1",502,393 to the ESFA which is still part of an ongoing discussion but the Trustees believe it is
prudent to recognise this liability in the accounts as at 31 August 2027. Currently a repayment
schedule has not yet been agreed and therefore this liability has been included as a creditor falling
due within 1 year as at the year-end date.

L44,O62 L,246,950 L,39t,O!2 L,375,L67

The expenditure on the Academy's educational operations was f5,248,856 (2020: f 5,089,593)
of which f149,964 was unrestricted (2020: f169,149), f4,932,67O was restricted (2020:
f4,754,1,19) and f 1"66,222 as restricted fixed assets (2020: f 166,325).

Extraordinary items

Total
2021
€

L,5O2,393
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10 Staff

Staff costs
Staff costs during the period were:

Wages and salaries
Social security costs
Operating costs of defined benefit pension schemes

Supply staff costs
Agency staff
Staff restructuring costs

Teachers
Administration and support
Management

Queen Elizabeth Grammar School Penrith

Tota!
2021

E

3,O44,263
300,079
811,093

Total
2020

f.
2,905,O24

285,659
847,307

4,L55,435 4,O37,990
37,L59 30,407

- ,,,,,,

b.

c.

4,192,594 4,O94,296

Staff restructuring costs comprise:
Severance payments 25,899

Non statutory / non-contractual staff severance payments

lncluded in staff restructuring costs are non-statutory / non-contractual severance payments
totalling f Nil (2020: €25,899). lndividually the payments were f Nil (2020: f 25,899).

Staff numbers
The average number of persons employed by the academy during the period was as follows:

Tota!
2021

C

62
45

5

Total
2020

C

52
44

5

LLz 7t2
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10 Staff (Continued)

Higher paid staff
The number of employees whose employee benefits (excluding employer pension costs)
exceeded f60,000 was:

f60,001 - f70,000
f90,001 - f100,000

e. Key management personnel
The key management personnel of the academy trust comprise the trustees and the senior
leadership team as listed on page 3. The total amount of key management personnel
benefits (including employer pension contributions and employer national insurance
contributions) received by key management personnel for their services to the academy
trust was f437,853 (2O2O: f525,1.24).

Related party transactions - Trustees' remuneration and expenses
One or more trustees has been paid remuneration or has received other benefits from
employment with the academy trust. The principal and other staff trustees only receive
remuneration in respect of services they provide undertaking the roles of principal and staff
members under their contracts of employment.

The value of trustees' remuneration and other benefits was as follows:

PE Buckland (Head Teacher and trustee):
- Remuneration f95,000 - f99,999 l2O2O: f95,000 - f99,999)
- Employer's pension contributions paid f20,000 - f24,999 (2O2O: f20,000 - f24,ggg)

AC Worth (staff trustee):
- Remuneration f 50,000 - f54,999 (2020: f 50,000 - f54,999)
- Employer's pension contributions paid f 10,000 - 1.4,999 (2o2o: f 1o,ooo - f 14,999)

A Martin (staff trustee, resigned 1 September 2O2O):
- Remuneration f0 (2020: f45,000 - f49,999\
- Employer's pension contributions paid f0 (2020: €1O,OO0 - f 14,999)

During the period ended 31 August 2O2t travel and subsistence expenses totaling fNil were
reimbursed or paid directly to trustees (2020: f Nil).

Queen Elizabeth Grammar School Penrith

d.

Tota!
202t

f
1

1

Total
2020
f

1

1

11
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Notes to the Financia! Statements for the year ended 31 August
2O2t (Continued)

Trustees and officers insurance
ln accordance with normal commercial practice the academy has purchased insurance to protect
trustees and officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on
academy business. The insurance for the year ended 31 August 2021 provides cover up to f10,000,000
(2020: f 10,000,000) on any one claim and any one membership year.

The academy's insurance is via the Department for Education's risk protection arrangement (RPA) and
the cost of this insurance is included in the total insurance cost. lt is not possible to quantify the
trustees and officers indemnity element from the overall cost of the RPA scheme membership.

Tangible fixed assets13

Cost
At 1 September 2020
Addltions
Disposals

At 31 August2O2L

Depreciation
At 1 September 2020
Charged in year
Disposals

At 31 August2O2L

Net book values
At 31 August2O2O

At 31 Augusr2O2L

Leasehold property includes:

Buildings
Land

g,ggg,5g2 32,000 240,4LO 390,247 49,056 9,601,305

Leasehold
Land and
Buildings

f

9,854,463
25,LL9

Freehold
Land and
Buildings

f

32,000

Furniture
and

Equipment
E

237,940
6,190

(3,720)

Computer
Hardware

f

390,247

Motor
Vehicles

f.

49,066

Total
f.

9,573,776
31,309
(3,72o)

L,O54,Og2
LO7,360

32,000 2L2,793
- 13,039
- (3,720)

38,507 L,693,454
6,568 L42,44L

- (3,720)

3s6,062
t5,375

L,16L,452 32,000 222,LtL 37L,437 45,L75 L,832,L75

7,810,37L 25,L47 34,L86 LO,557 7,880,262

7,745,730 L8,299 18,910 3,89L 7,769,L29

Total
2021

f.
5,589,582
2,200,ooo

Total
2020

c
6,664,463
2,200,ooo

8,889,582 8,864,463

The leasehold land and buildings were valued in November 2Olt by Penrith Farmers'and Kidds' PLC,

Chartered Surveyors, on the basis of depreciated replacement cost for existing use. ln the Trustees'

opinion this valuation is still appropriate at 31August2021'.
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Tangible fixed assets (continued)

Source of funding for assets acquired

Devolved formulae capital
Restricted general funds
U nrestricted general funds
Third party donations

Queen Elizabeth Grammar School Penrith

13

Total
202L

f

25,1L9

6,190

Total
2020
f

9,252
5,643

16,831

31,309 3L,726

t4 Stock
Total
202t

C

4,429

Total
2020

f
4,595

15

Stationery, catering and other stock

Debtors

Trade debtors
VAT recoverable
Other debtors
Prepayments and accrued income

Total
2021

f
5,482

30,069
4,690

100,939

Total
2020

f.
3,t49

23,235
4,839

L70,2L9

L4L,L70 207,442
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Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
Total
2020

€
78,OLL
69,080
2,798

37,s34_

65,29L

L,8\4,755 252,7\4

Trade creditors
Other taxation and social security
Public benefit concessionary loans
Other creditors
ESFA creditor - repayment of CIF monies
Accruals and deferred income

Total
2021

€
84,502
75,657

2,165
48,579

L,soz,393
101,458

Deferred income

Deferred income at 01 September 2020
Released from previous years
Resources deferred in the year

Deferred income at 31 August 2O2L L4,267 T4,26L

At the balance sheet date the academy trust was holding funds received in advance for rates relief
of f14,267 (2020: f1.4,267).

Public benefit concessionary loans represent three Salix loans totalingf2,766 (2O2O: f 2,798). The
Salix loans are repayable over 8 years and are interest free.

L7 Creditors: amounts falling due in greater than one year

Total Total
202t 2020

Cf
L4,26L

(L4,26L)
L4,26L L4,26L

Total
202L

f.

Total
2020
f

Public benefit concessionary loans 85,387 86,922

85,387 86,922

Public benefit concessionary loans represent three Salix loans totalingf76,602 (2O2O: f-L8,L371

and an ESFA loan of f68,785 (2020: f68,785). The Salix loans are repayable over 8 years and are

interest free. The other ESFA loan is repayable over L0 years with an annual interest rate of 2-21%.

lncluded within the above are amounts not wholly repayable within 5 years and are repayable by

instalments. Salix Loans totaling f5,O52 (2O2O: f4,42O) and other ESFA loans totaling
f42,OOO (2O2O : f 42,000).
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18 Funds

Analysis of movements in restricted funds

Balance at
01 September

2020
E

Restricted general funds
General annual grant (GAG)

CIF monies to be repaid
Pupil Premium
Teachers' Pension grant
Catch-up premium
Other DfE/ESFA COVID-19 funding
Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme grant
Other COVID-19 funding
Other grants -

Elliot-Lees fund L,999
Other donations/income L7,549
Pension reserye (2,108,000)

Gains, Balance at
Losses and 31 August

Expenditure Transfers 2O2L
f€f

lncome
€

4,489,468
(1,502,393)

28,637
L80,772
58,320
(1,533)
9,44t

43,240
90,3L7

54,789

(4,377,6501

(28,637)
(t8o,772)
(4s,284)

(144)
(9,44L)

(43,2401,
(90,317)

(53,185)
(104,000)

(40,559)

L,77;

(z,og8)
50,000

71,249
(1,502,393)

13,03;

1,99;
L7,LLs

(2,t62,OOOI

(2,O88,4521 3,450,958 (4,932,67Ol, g,t7o (3,560,995)

Restricted fixed asset funds
Restricted Fixed Assets
DfE/ESFA capital grants
clF projects 2o/2L
Third party donations

7,880,262
20,8L7

97
10,000

20,594_

9,668

(L42,44L1
(14,510)

(9,272)

31,309

(5,190)

7,769,L29
26,902

97
4,207

7,91L,t76 3,48L,220 (L56,2221 25,Ltg 7,800,335

Total restricted funds 5,822,724 4,983,613 (5,098,892) 34,289 4,239,340

The academy trust is carrying a net deficit of f1,782,767 on restricted general funds (excluding pension

reserve) due to the inclusion of the ESFA assessment on the repayment of CIF monies. Additional information
is included in the Trustees Report and Note 31 to the financial statements.
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18 Funds (Continued)

Analysis of movements in restricted funds - previous year
Balance at

01 September
2019
f

Restricted general funds
General annual grant (GAG) 5,590
Pupil Premium
Teachers' Pension grant
Catch-up premium
Other DfE/ESFA COVID-19 funding
Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme grant
Other COVID-19 funding
Other grants
Elliot-Lees fund
Other donations/income
Pension resen e

7,gg;
96,377

(1,738,000)

L2,8LO
25,L69

311,692

61,964_

(12,810)
(2s,169)

(313,493)

(61,818)
(194,000)

Gains,
Losses and

Transfers
E

s6,881

1,811

(78,973)
(176,000)

Balance at
31 August

2020
e

L,999
L7,549

(2,109,000)

!ncome Expenditure
ee

4,L22,236 (4,184,808)
29,555 (29,555)

175,222 L75,222

(1,633,934) 4,49s,882 (4,7s4,7L9) (195,281) (2,088,4s2)

Restricted fixed asset funds
R'estricted Fixed Assets
DfE/ESFA capital grants
CIF projects 19/20
Third party donations

Total restricted funds

Analysis of movements in unrestricted funds

Balance at
O1 September

2020
E

Gains, Balance at
Losses and 31 August

Expenditure Transfers 2O2t
f€E

7,994,209
30,565 20,L55

26,832

(L4s,673)
(20,6s1)

3L,726
(9,252l,

(15,832)

7,990,262
20,8L7

97
10,000

8,024,87L 46,987 1L66,3241 5,642 7,9LL,t76

6,390,937 4,542,869 (4,92O,44L) (190,538) 5,822,724

lncome
e.

Total unrestricted funds 202,569 L47,9L2 (L49,9641

Analysis of movements in unrestricted funds - previous year

L5,7LL 276,228

Balance at
O1 September

2019 lncome
€f

Gains, Balance at
Losses and 31 August

Expenditure Transfers 2O2O

€CE

L48,7L7Total unrestricted funds
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18 Funds (Continued)

The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:

a. General Annual Grant (GAG) must be used for the normal running costs of the Academy.
The Academy is allowed to carry forward up to 12% of the current GAG. Of the carried
forward amount, up to 2o/o of GAG can be used for general purposes at the discretion of the
Academy, but any balance over 2%o must be used for capital purposes. Under the funding
agreement with the Secretary of State, the academy trust was subject to a limit on the
amount of GAG that it could carry forward at 3 L August 2021. Note 2 discloses whether the
limit was exceeded.

b. Other donations brought forward included the transfer of sundry net assets of f120,223 on

conversion to an academy trust.
c. The pension reserve relates to the Academy's share of the deficit of the Local Government

Pension Scheme.
d. Closing balances on lines within Restricted Fixed Asset Fund reflect the Net Book Value of

the assets held by the academy together with unspent DFC monies.
e. The Academy successfully bid for monies as part of the Government's Condition

lmprovement Fund (ClF). The first projects in 201.61201.7 were to upgrade the boilers and

heating, windows and roofing and life safety. The value of the three projects was

11.,434,603. The amounts identified by the ESFA to be returned is f313,823.
A further bid in 20171201,8 was to replace 1950's temporary timber mobiles in a defective
condition. The value of the project was f'J.,24'J.,894 and the build cost was f 1,188,570 with
f!6,422 held on retention and €35,900 already returned to the EFSA.

The ongoing discussions with the ESFA are for a liability of f 1,502,393 (being f 313,823 and

f 1,188,570)to be repaid however this is still in the negotiation stage.

Transfers have been made for the following:

a. The transfer out of the restricted general funds of f25,179 represents the balance of
expenditure on fixed assets not funded by Devolved Formula Capital or third party
donations, transferred to the Restricted fixed asset fund.

b. The transfer from Restricted General funds to Unrestricted of f.19,27I represents a

contribution towards the catering costs of the school.
c. The transfer from Unrestricted funds of f3,500 to Restricted General funds represents a

contribution from the Mastery Math's designated fund towards staff costs.
c. The transfer of €2,038 from other donations/income relates to the contributions towards trips

running the L6-19 transport and excess income from trips inline with the academy's policy.
d. The transfer of f!,777 to Other DfE/ESFA Covid-l-9 funding relates to an over estimate of

accrued income in 2019 I 2020.

Comparative transfer details:

The transfer out of the Restricted general funds of f5,642 represents the balance of
expenditure on fixed assets not funded by Devolved Formula Capital, transferred to the
Restricted fixed asset fund.
The transfer from Restricted General funds to Unrestricted of f 14,638 represents f 14,310
contribution towards the catering costs of the school and f327 which has been reassessed
as Unrestricted funds due to the nature of the income source.

b.
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c. The transfer of f l",81L to other grants and/donations relates to the contributions towards trips.
d. The transfer of f78,973 from other donations/income is to cover the overspend on the General

Annual Grant fund.

Analysis of net assets between funds

Fund balances at 31 August 2O2Lare represented by:

19

Tangible fixed assets
Current assets
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Pension scheme liability

Total net assets

Analysis of net assets between funds - previous year

Fund balances at 31 August 2O2O are represented by:

275,228 (3,560,995) 7,800,335 4,455,569

Restricted
Unrestricted General

Funds Funds
c.f

303,781 413,s9s
12,L65l (1,812,s89)

(85,387)
- (2,L62,OOO\

Restricted
Fixed Asset

Funds

f
7,769,L29

3L,206

Total Funds

f.
7,769,129

748,582
(L,8L4,755)

(8s,387)
(2,t62,OOO)

Tangible fixed assets
Current assets
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Pension scheme liability

Total net assets

Capital commitments

Unrestricted
Funds

f

292,289
(2,798)

(86,e221

Restricted
General

Funds

€

269,464
(249,9L61

(2,108,000)

Restricted
Fixed Asset

Funds

€
7,880,262

30,914

Total Funds
E

7,880,262
592,567

(2s2,7L41
(86,922)

(2,108,O00)

202,569 (2,088,4521 7,9LL,L76 6,025,293

20
Total
2021

C

Total
2020

E

Contracted for, but not provided in the financial statements
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payments

Total
2021

C

7,O90
28,32L

under non-

Total
202lJ

e
8,814

35,401 8,814

22 Reconciliation of net income/(expenditure) to net cash flow from operating activities

Total
2021

f

(117,331)

(1,s02,393)
L42,44L
(3O,262)

(4s1)
63,000
36,000

5,000
766

60,272
L,s62,673

Total
2020
f

(338,361)

L45,673
(46,987l.

(1,826)
158,000
32,000
4,000
9,467

(84,28L)
31,490

23

2L9,LLs (90,825)

Total Total
2021 2020

EE
(2,L66_) (3,380)

(2,766) (3,380)

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 August
2O2l (Continued)

2L Commitments under operating leases

At 3L August 2O2L the total of the academy trust's future minimum lease
cancellable operating leases was:

Amounts due within one year
Amounts due between one and five years

Net income/(expenditure for the reporting period
(as per the statement of financial activities)

Adjusted for:
Extraordinary item
Depreciation
Capital grants from DfE and other capital income
lnterest receivable
Defined benefit pension scheme cost less contributions payable
Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost
Defined benefit pension administration expenses
(lncrease)/decrease in stocks
(l ncrease)/decrease i n debtors
lncrease/(decrease) in creditors

Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Repayments of borrowing
Cash inflow from new borrowing

Net cash provided byl(used in) financing activities
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24 Cash flows from investing activities
Total
2021

E

451
(31,309)
20,594
9,658

(595) L7,O87

31 August 31 August
2021 2020
ee

602,983 385,530

Dividends, interest and rents from investments
Purchase of tangible fixed assets
Capital grants from DfE/ESFA
Capital funding received from others

Net cash provided byl(used in) investing activities

25 Analysis of cash and cash equivalents

Cash in hand and at bank

Total cash and cash equivalents

Analysis of changes in net debt

Cash at bank and in hand
Loans falling due:
Loans falling due within one year

Loans falling due after more than one year

Total cash and cash equivalents

Total
2020

€
L,826

(3L,726l.
20,155
26,832

AtAt

502,983 385,530

26
At

0l September
2020
e

386,630

(2,798)
(86,9221

Cash
Flows

€

2L6,353

632
1,535

At
31 August

2021
f

602,983

(2,L66)
(85,387)

27

296,gLO 218,520 s15,430

Members liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company

in the event of it being wound up while he/she is a member, or within one year after he/she ceases

to be a member, such amount as may be required, not exceeding f 10 for the debts and liabilities

contracted before he/she ceases to be a member.

Pension and similar obligations

The academy trust's employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers' Pension

Scheme England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff; and the Local Government

Pension Scheme (LGPS) for non-teaching staff, which is managed by Cumbria County Council. Both

are multi-employer defined benefit schemes

28
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Queen Elizabeth Grammar School Penrith

Pension and similar obligations (Continued)

The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31
LGPS 31 March 2019.

28

March 2016 and of the

There were no outstanding or prepaid contributions at either the beginning or the end of the
financial year.

Teachers' Pension Scheme

lntroduction
The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by
the Teachers' Pension Scheme Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic for teachers in academies.
All teachers have the option to opt-out of the TPS following enrolment.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme to which both the member and employer makes contributions, as a
percentage of salary - these contributions are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other pension
benefits are paid by public funds provided by Parliament.

Valuation of the Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the
TPS in accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014
published by HM Treasury every 4 years. The aim of the review is to specify the level of future
contributions. Actuarial scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future
costs, design of benefits and many other factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried
out as at 31 March 2015. The valuation report was published by the Department for Education on 5
March 2019. The key elements of the valuation and subsequent consultation are:

employer contribution rates set at23.68% of pensionable pay (including a O.OB%administration
levy)

total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits)
for service to the effective date of €218,100 million and notional assets (estimated future
contributions together with the notional investments held at the valuation date) of f 19G,100
million, giving a notional past service deficit of f 22,000 million

the SCAPE rate, set by HMT, is used to determine the notional investment return. The current
SCAPE rate is 2.4o/o above the rate of CPl. Assumed real rate of return is2.4% in excess of prices
and 2% in excess of earnings. The rate of real earnings growth is assumed to be 2.2%. The
assumed nominal rate of return including earnings growth is 4.45%.
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28 Pension and similar obligations (Continued)

Scheme Changes

The arrangements for a reformed Teachers' Pension Scheme, in line with the recommendations made
by Lord Hutton, in particular the introduction of a Career Average Revalued Earnings (CARE) scheme,
were implemented from l April 2015.

ln December 2OL8, the Court of Appeal held that transitional protection provisions contained in the
reformed judicial and firefighter pension schemes, introduced as part of public service pension reforms
in 2015, gave rise to direct age discrimination and were therefore unlawful. The Supreme Court, in a
decision made in June 201.9, have rejected the Government's application for permission to appeal the
Court of Appeal's ruling. The case will now be referred to an Employment Tribunal for a decision
regarding the remedy which will need to be offered to those members of the two schemes who were
subject of the age discrimination.

HM Treasury are clear that the ruling has implications for the other public service schemes, including
the Teachers' Pension Scheme. Those implications are currently being considered and any impact on
scheme costs is expected to be looked at within the next scheme valuation, which is currently
scheduled to be based on April 2020 data and implemented in April 2023.

The next valuation result is due to be implemented from 1 April 2023.

The employer's pension costs paid to TPS in the period amounted to f575,941 (2O2O: f543,113)

A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers' Pensions website.

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded multi-employer pension scheme. The

academy trust has accounted for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contribution
scheme. The academy trust has set out above the information available on the scheme.

local Government Pension Scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined benefit pension scheme, with the assets held in separate trustee-
administered funds. The total contribution made for the year ended 31 August 2021 was

f210,000 (2O2O: f182,000), of which employer's contributions totalled f176,000 (2O2O:

f153,000) and employees' contributions totalled f34,000 (2o2o: f29,000). The agreed

contribution rates for future years are 77.7 per cent for employers and between 5.5 and 12.5 per

cent for employees.

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that,
in the event of academy trust closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities
would be met by the Department for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013.
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At the balance sheet date the scheme is in deficit. The academy has entered into an agreement
effective from 1 April 2017 to make additional contributions in addition to normal funding levels.
It is anticipated that the payments will be made over L6 years from 1 April 2017, including f 59,000
in the year ended 31 March 2021,, f6O,400 in 2021-22 and f 61,800 in 2022-23.

28

Principal actuarial assumptions

Rate of increase in salaries
Rate of increase for pensions in payment/inflation
Discount rate for scheme liabilities
lnflation assumption (CPl)

Discount rate +O.Lo/o

Discount rate -0.1%

Mortality assumption - 1 year increase
Mortality assumption - 1 year decrease
CPI rate +O.Lo/o

cPl rate -0.1%

At 31 August 2021
4.2%
2.8%
L.7%
2.7%

At 31 August 2020
3.9%
2.5%
1.8%

2.4%

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in
mortality rates. The assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:

At 31 August 2021 At 31 August 2020
Retiring today:
Males
Females

Retiring in 20 years:

Males
Females

Sensitivity analysis - (reduction!/increase in deficit

22.7
2s.3

24.3
27.2

22.6
25.2

24.2
27.7

At
31 August

2021
f

(88,000)

90,000
153,000

(148,000)
90,000

(88,000)

At
31 August

2020
f

(78,000)

123,000
(79,000)

79,000
(119,000)

(78,000)
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The academy trust's share of the assets in the scheme were:
Fair Value Fair Value

At At
31 August

2021
C

999,000
438,000

194,000
97,OOO

820,000

2,548,OOO 2,036,000

31 August
2020

€
705,000
395,000

4,000
112,000
197,000
523,000

Equity instruments
Government bonds
Other bonds
Property
Cash/liquidity
Other

Total cash and cash equivalents

The actual return on scheme assets was €355,000 (2020: €-5,000).

Amount recognised in the statement of financial activities:

At l September
Current service cost
lnterest cost
Em ployee contri butions
Actuarial (gain)/loss
Benefits paid
Past service cost *

At 31 August

At
31 August

2021
f

(239,000)

(36,000)
(5,000)

At
31 August

2020
f

(198,000)
(113,O00)

(32,000)
(4,000)

Current service cost
Past service cots *

Net interest cost
Adm i nistration expenses

Tota! operating charge

Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligations were as follows:

(280,000) (347,000)

At
31 August

2021
C

4,t44,OOO

239,000
74,OOO

34,000
267,OOO
(48,O00)

At
31 August

2020
f

3,448,000
198,000
64,000
29,000

345,000
(53,000)
113,000
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Changes in the fair value of academy's share of scheme assets:
At

31 August
202L

€
2,035,000

38,000
317,000

(s,000)

L76,O00
34,000

(48,000)

2,548,000 2,035,000

ln 2015, the government introduced reforms to public sector pensions, meaning many public sector

workers were moved into new pension schemes. ln December 2Ot8, the Court of Appeal ruled that
the 'transitional protection' offered to members in these schemes amounted to unlawful

discrimination. This case is known as McCloud.

The Supreme Court decision in June 2019 not to allow the government leave to appeal, means the
difference in treatment needs to be remedied across all relevant schemes, including the Local

Government Pension Scheme (LGPS).

The impact of McCloud was taken into account in the FRS102 actuarial valuation and included for
disclosure in the trust's20L9/20 financialstatements. The impact is included in the past service cost

figure as disclosed below.

At l September
lnterest income
Actuarial gain/(loss)
Admi nistration expenses
Employer contributions
Employee contri butions
Benefits paid

At 31 August

At
31 August

2020
E

1,710,OO0

32,000
169,000

(4,000)

153,000
29,000

(53,000)

Past service costs includes:

McCloud impact

GMP indexation

2021f Nil (2020: f99,000)

2021 f Nil (2020: f 15,000)
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Related party transactions

Owing to the nature of the academy trust and the composition of the board of trustees being
drawn from local public and private sector organisations, transactions may take place with
organisations in which the trustees have an interest. All transactions involving such organisations
are conducted in accordance with the requirements of the Handbook including notifying the ESFA

of all transactions made on or after 1 April 2019 and obtaining approval where required, and with
the academy trust's financial regulations and normal procurement procedures relating to
connected and related party transactions.

Expenditure Related Party Transactions

Mr C Hansford, a Trustee, is a Partner within Brabners LLP. The academy trust purchased legal
advice from Brabners LLP totaling f8,482 (2020: f Nil) during the year including f\,768 within
accrualat the year end. There were no amounts outstanding as at 3l August 2021. The academy
trust made the purchase at arms' length following the academy's scheme of delegation and in
accordance with its financial regulations, which Mr Hansford neither participated in, nor
influenced. The purchase was undertaken at normal commercial rates since the 'at no more than
cost' requirement is not applicable in accordance with section 5.55 of the Academies Financial
Handbook since the services were being provided by an independent Partner within Brabners LLP.

Agency Arrangements

The academy trust distributes 16-19 bursary funds to students as an agent for ESFA. ln the
accounting period ending 31 August 2021 the trust received f19,690 (2020: f15,752) and
disbursed f4,836 l2O2O: f3,3471 from the fund. An amount of f27,258 (2020: f12,404) is in
included in other creditors relating to undistributed funds that is repayable to ESFA.

Going Concern

After the 3L August 2027 year end the ESFA issued an initial assessment based on an investigation
which has been conducted over the past two years in respect of projects undertaken under the
Condition lmprovement Funding programme. This assessment has indicated a potential
repayment of f1.,5O2,393 to the ESFA for ineligible costs over a number of projects. This
assessment is still part of an ongoing discussion with the ESFA and some of the findings are
disputed by the Trustees. The Trustees believe it is prudent to recognise this liability in the
accounts as at 3l- August 2021. Although a repayment schedule has not yet been agreed, this
liability has been included as a creditor falling due within one year.

The reserves of the academy are not sufficient to enable this liability to be settled within one year.
However, the Academy continues to communicate with the ESFA and in the event that the
payment cannot be overturned will agree a sensible payment schedule in line with the expected
lifetime of the building.
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